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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The United States Military Academy at West Point contains within the bounds 
of its military reservation the remains of Revolutionary War fortifications, 
as well as present Academy structures, which include a range of buildings 
from the early years of the Academy, up to buildings constructed within the 
immediate past.

The Revolutionary War fortifications consisted of a series of batteries, 
redoubts and forts constructed on the western shore of Constitution Island, 
as well as on the plain and surrounding hills of West Point.

The fortifications on Constitution Island were constructed in two phases, the 
first occurring between 1775 and 1777, when four batteries, constructed of 
stone and earth, and some wooden outbuildings, were erected to control the 
Hudson River. These were demolished in 1778, during the British offensive 
and were not rebuilt. Following the American reoccupation of the Highlands 
in 1778, three redoubts, numbers 5-7, and a battery and later a magazine and 
barracks were constructed on the western shore and the high ground of the 
island. These were eventually abandoned. Constitution Island today has 
changed little from colonial days. One house, the Warner House, which may 
encompass one wall of the stone barracks is the only structure on the island. 
£K>.:i$ nonhistiQric* The redoubt and-battery sites, have been located by the 
Academy and archeological research has been done as -well. There are no out­ 
standing plans for any major development of the island.

The West Point fortifications, begun in 1778 comprised the major American 
stronghold of the Highlands. They were designed by a series of foreign 
engineers, including Radiere, Kosciuszko, Gouvion and Viliefranche.

The main fortification, Fort Arnold, renamed Fort Clinton (#1, numbers 1-8 
keyed to USGS map), was situated on the plain on the tip of the Point 
itself. It consisted of a stone and earth bulwark, topped with tree trunks, 
on a natural stone outcropping on the west bank of the river. A portion of 
the eastern wall has been stabilized with new masonry and earthwork, and is 
preserved as a monument. Above Fort Clinton, on the high ground to the 
west is Fort Putnam (#2), named for its builder, Colonel Rufus Putnam. Its 
stone ramparts enclosed a powder magazine, cistern and garrison quarters. 
It has survived partially original and partially reconstructed. A stone 
quarters has been recently constructed inside the fort to house an 
historical interpretation facility. Below Fort Putnam, covering the 
southern approaches, were built Forts Wyllis, Meigs and Webb. Only Forts 
Wyllis (#3) and Meigs (#4) survive, and they have been stabilized. On the 
hills above and to the west of Fort Putnam, four strong redoubts were 
constructed (# f s 5-8), with connecting trails. These redoubts are still 
extant, although Redoubt #3 is in bad condition. Redoubt #4 was recently 

and is being stabilized. In addition to these major works, there
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The United States Military Academy was established by Act of Congress on March 
16, 1802, and was formally opened on the following Fourth of July. In 
existence continuously since that date, the Academy at West Point, New York, 
has trained the officers who in peace and war have developed and commanded 
the Regular Army of the United States. Military interest in West Point dates 
from the early years of the War for Independence and troops have been 
stationed there since January 1778, making it the oldest permanently occupied 
military post in the country.

The Military Academy reservation is open to visitors throughout the year 
although many buildings and areas are closed to the public. Sites of 
significance range from Revolutionary fortifications through the Federal- 
style Superintendent's Quarters and the more imposing Gothic Style Cadet 
Chapel.

HISTORY

With the outbreak of open hostilities in the spring of 1775, the Continental 
Congress "Resolved, that a post be....taken in the highlands on each side of 
Hudson's River and batteries erected in such a manner as will most effectually 
prevent any vessels passing."

Colonel James Clinton and Christopher Tappan were deputized by the New York 
Provincial Congress to reconnoiter along the Hudson, and following their 
report, the first fortifications were begun where the river makes a sudden 
shift in its course and passes between West Point and Constitution Island 
(then Martelaer's Rock). Colonel Bernard Romans was engaged as the engineer 
for the fortification, and he drew up a plan which called for a "Grand 
Bastion," four blockhouses and four batteries on Constitution Island, and a 
single blockhouse, on West Point. In fact, only four batteries, one block­ 
house and^'soBie^oiitbuildings were completed all on Constitution Island, and 
^these were abandoned by the Americans during Sir Henry Clinton's Highlands 
b^nstiVe*j.frif't ifflt tall of 1777. Following Burgoyne's defeat at Saratoga and 
Clinton withdrawllto the city of New York, the Americans set about reforti- 
fying the^fl£glil$ji4s - On January 20, 1778, West Point was occupied and new

begun there, Fort Arnold on the tip of "West Point" itself
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were a series of shore batteries, including the western Chain Battery, as well 
as barracks and huts on the lower ground along the river bank. These sites 
have been virtually eliminated by the expansions of the Academy plant.

When the Academy was established at West Point in 1802, there were several 
buildings on the site which were hastily adapted to serve their new functions 
as best they could. It was not until 1815 that Congress appropriated funds 
for buildings specifically designed to serve the needs of the Academy. 
While the Mess Hall, the Academy and the South and North Barracks erected with 
these funds no longer survive, their former presence is still felt in that 
they established the location of the main Academy buildings at the southern 
edge of the West Point plain. Still remaining from this early building 
period are the Superintendent's Quarters (100) }* built in 1820, the 
Commandant's Quarters (101), erected in 1821, and the three double houses 
known collectively as Professors' Row (103-108) dating from 1821-1828.

The Superintendent's and the Commandant's Quarters are both handsome;.brick 
structures in the Federal style, the latter being somewhat less imposing in 
size and elaborateness. While both have been altered, the clean crisp 
lines of their original design are still clearly discernible. More altered 
than these two Quarters are the houses comprising Professors' Row. These 
structures, of locally quarried stone, with brick wings occupy an impressive 
location and give a distinctly residential character to this portion of the 
campus.

The first building at the Academy which seems to have been designed in a 
conscious attempt at architectural distinction is the Old Cadet Chapel 
(638), dating from 1836. This stone structure is a fine example of Classic 
Revival Style. It contains elements of both Greek and Roman design; the 
building itself is a modified Roman basilica and its portico is Greek Doric 
in inspiration. This chapel has been moved from its original location on 
the south edge of "The Plain."

Following the Classic Revival, Major Richard Delafield, who served as 
Superintendent of the Academy from 1856-61, introduced the next phase of 
building at West Point. Apparently Delafield was much attracted by the 
architecture of medieval England, with its militaristic overtones, and saw 
the appropriateness of transplanting this style to the Military Academy. 
Of the major academic buildings erected at West Point at this time, only

!• These numbers in brackets refer to the numbers assigned on the official 
Guide Map of West Point, enclosed within.
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the old "First Division" (756) of the Central Barracks remains. Erected in 
1851 of locally quarried stone, it is a fine example of the early Gothic 
Revival, with its battlements, drip stones and Gothic moldings.

In addition to the academic buildings erected in the Gothic Revival Style, 
this mode is also reflected by several officers' quarters. The most familiar 
of these is the Dean's Quarters (102) erected in 1857. It exemplifies the 
Picturesque or Carpenter's Gothic and is complemented by the later (1870) 
officers' quarters (146).

The earliest Gothic Revival structure on the campus is the Ordnance 
Laboratory, now the First Class Club (#'s 635, 637, 671) which was built 
around 1842. It incorporates two buildings dating from 1837, within its 
minature fortress-like walls. Adjacent to the Ordnance Lab, is the old 
Boodler's Shop (147) which dates from 1878. Its very existence, and the 
purpose for which it was built, as a sort of candy shop, illustrate that 
life at the Academy was not all drill and study. It is a rather simple two 
story brick structure, used today as a community activity building.

With the exception of Cullum Hall (605), a Classic Revival structure built 
by the firm of McKim, Mead and White in 1898, the bulk of the West Point 
buildings erected at the turn of the century and in the expansion program 
which followed, were in the style of the Gothic Revival. The West Academic 
Building (751) designed by Richard Morris Hunt in 1895 reintroduced the 
Gothic style, which was taken up by the firm of Cram, Goodhue and Ferguson 
in the 1903-1914 expansion of the Academy. Notable products of that expan­ 
sion are the Cadet Chapel (722) and the Administration Building (600). The 
militarized Gothic style has utilized in the majority of the academic 
buildings since that time. In the most recent expansion which began in 
1964 and is still continuing, the Gothic style was utilized in the new 
Academic Building on Cullum Road, just south of Thayer Hall and in the 
Washington Hall/Barracks complex (745). Eisenhower Hall (655), the cadet 
activities center, is faced with brick rather than the standard gray stone 
and although it maintains the Perpendicular style of the Gothic, its blank 
walls and absence of detail distinguish it from the Gothic manner.
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and Fort Putnam on the heights to the west of Fort Arnold. A new chain and 
boom were constructed in a very short time and were placed across the river 
from West Point to Constitution Island in April of 1778. The Americans built 
a whole network of fortifications, redoubts and batteries at West Point, on 
Constitution Island and on the hilltops above the east bank of the river. 
These works were laid out largely by foreign engineers, including Radiere, 
Kosciuszko, Gouvion and Villefranche. The West Point complex effectively 
sealed off the Hudson valley through the Highlands and it was never challenged 
by the British. In September of 1780, it was discovered that Benedict Arnold, 
then commandant of West Point, had plotted with British Major John Andre to 
sell West Point to the British. The treason was discovered; Andre was hung 
and Arnold fled to the British.

Following the close of the war, a regular garrison continued to be stationed 
at West Point but it was not until 1801 that Congress created the military 
academy and provided for its establishment at West Point. Two compelling 
reasons made the formation of an American military academy both logical and 
necessary: the experience of the Revolutionary War and the ominous inter­ 
national political situation during the early years of the Republic.

The experience of the Revolutionary War, during which the colonies had to 
rely in large part on foreign drillmasters, artillerists and trained engineers, 
made the military and political leaders of the day energetic backers of a 
military academy. The papers of Henry Knox, Benjamin Lincoln, Jedediah 
HuntingtoQ, Timothy Pickering, John Adams, Alexander Hamilton and George 
Washington mention time and time again the need for such a school. In his 
annual messages to Congress, Washington always included a plea that 
Congress provide facilities for the study of military art.

The second compelling reason for the immediate establishment of a military 
academy was America's vulnerable position in the international politics of 
1801-2. The previous two decades had been troublesome ones. The trouble 
with the Barbary pirates, Shay's Rebellion, the Whiskey Rebellion, boundary 
disputes, frontier battles and currency quarrels had plagued the young nation, 
and now it was threatened by the danger of involvement in the complexities 
that arose in the wake of the French Revolution. Public opinion moved 
toward more energetic national government and better trained armed forces.

So it was that Congress, by its Act of March 16, 1802, authorized a Corps 
of Engineers, set its strength at five officers and ten cadets and provided 
that it be stationed at West Point in the State of New York and constitute a 
Military Academy. Jonathan Williams, Chief of the Corps of Engineers and 
the first Superintendent was able to open the Academy on July 4, 1802, with 
ten cadets present.

(Continued)
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The initial purpose of the Academy was to train military technicians for all 
branches of the military service, to encourage the study of military art 
nationally and, thus, raise the level of training of the militia, and to 
encourage the practical study of every science. How well the Academy 
succeeded in its purpose for the first ten years of its existence was 
summarized by Henry Adams. In his "History of the United States," which 
covered the Jefferson and Madison administrations, Adams offers the tribute 
that American scientific engineering "....owed its efficiency and almost its 
existence to the military school at West Point established in 1802."

The growing threat of war with England impelled the Congress to pass the Act 
of April 29, 1812, by which the Corps of Cadets was increased to 250, the 
academic staff was enlarged and the cadets were placed under the discipline of 
published regulations. In the war that followed, the Academy graduates 
served their country well. A quarter of the more than one hundred who saw 
action were killed or wounded; and not one of the fortifications constructed 
under their direction was captured.

Following the cessation of hostilities, the aims of the Academy's training 
were focused more on civil engineering and its application to the nation's 
internal expansions. Colonel Sylvanus Thayer, Superintendent from 1817 to 
1833 was the prime force in the reorganization of the educational curriculum, 
and many of his innovations are still incorporated in the Academy today. 
At the same time that the cadets were studying the principles of surveying, 
road and canal construction, and other elements of engineering and 
architecture, however, the art of military science was not neglected. The 
records of the Mexican and Civil Wars amply demonstrate the importance of 
the Academy's training. Grant, Lee, Sherman and Jackson, to name but a few 
from both the North and South were Academy graduates who distinguished 
themselves in both wars.

After the Civil War, changing conditions necessitated a shift in the Academy's 
curriculum away from the emphasis on civil engineering. The increase in the 
number of technical and engineering schools made it possible for West Point 
to drop its strong emphasis on engineering subjects. In addition to this, 
the tremendous expansion of the body of scientific knowledge in the last 
half of nineteenth century was enforcing specialization in all technical 
fields. Military science proved no exception to this situation and it 
became obvious that the Army officer would need specialized training in his 
particular branch as well. Consequently, the Academy severed its direct 
relationship with the Corps of Engineers. Several Army postgraduate schools 
were established and West Point gradually came to be looked on as only the 
initial step in the Army officer's education.

(Continued)
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After its centennial in 1902, the Academy underwent a thorough structural reno­ 
vation and became known as the New West Point. Coincident with this reconstruc­ 
tion, Superintendent General Albert Mills had the entire curriculum, military 
and academic reassessed. As a result, military instruction was transformed 
from a series of mechanical drills to practical training in minor tactics and 
field work. A gradual liberalization of the curriculum went on until the 
outbreak of World War I.

World War I tested and proved as never before, the soundness of the Academy's 
training. Although the course was shortened and a number of classes graduated 
early in order to meet the sudden demand for trained officers, the qualities 
and abilities of the graduates remained high.

General Douglas MacArthur was installed as Superintendent of the Academy 
after the war's close. His primary concern was to adapt the curriculum to 
reflect the terms of the recent war. The wide-ranging ramifications of total 
war required a new study of tactics and the national and international scenes. 
A greater stress was placed on physical education as well.

World War II and the Korean War once again generated a necessary revision of 
the concepts of military education. A comprehensive anaylsis of the entire 
program conducted from 1956 to 1960 resulted in increased emphasis on 
modern technological advances and the increasingly complex aspects of 
national security and international relations.

The academic and military training program is a vital, everchanging one that 
is continuously examined and adjusted to the changing times, and yet the 
Academy builds always on the cornerstone of the Thayer system: leadership 
integrated by excellence of character and excellence of knowledge.
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The United States Military Academy National Historic Landmark consists of 
that portion of the Military Reservation which is located to the east of 
the eastern curb of State 218, the Storm King Highway. Thus, the boundaries 
are indicated by the eastern curb of Route 218 from its point of intersec­ 
tion with the Reservation boundary to the north of the West Point itself 
(just east of the Necor horizontal control station), south along said curb 
to its easternmost intersection with the southern Reservation boundary (to 
the southwest of Dassori Pond) and from that point, along the Reservation 
boundary to the east, and then north along the shore line, including the 
docks, to the point of origin. Constitution Island, within the Reservation 
boundary, constitutes a discontiguous portion of the landmark. These 
boundaries are indicated by a sold black line on the enclosed USGS map. 
The Reservation lands to the west of Route 218 do not contain important 
historic sites associated with either the War for Independence or significant 
phases in the use of the Academy as a training institution.


